
   

            
ADDENDUM NO. 1 

 
DATE:  April 8, 2016 
FROM:  City of Grand Junction Purchasing Division 
TO:   All Offerors 
RE: Inmate Commissary Services RFP-4215-16-NJ 
 
Offerors responding to the above referenced solicitation are hereby instructed that the 
requirements have been clarified, modified, superseded and supplemented as to this date as 
hereinafter described. 
 

Please make note of the following clarifications: 
 

1. Mandatory Site-Visit Sign-In sheet: The Site-Visit Sign-In sheet for the mandatory 
site-visit is attached to this Addendum 1. 

 
2. Question 1: “Is there an interface in place today with New World JMS?” 

Response:   Yes, Keefe has an existing interface with New World. 
 

3. Question 2: “Would there be a charge to interface with New World?” 
Response:   We assume New World would charge for any new interface with their JMS 
and the cost of the interface would be the responsibility of the awarded offeror. 
 

4. Question 3: “Are restrictions sent to the commissary vendor via interface or manually 
entered in the commissary POS application?” 
Response: Currently, sanctions/restrictions are manually entered by staff in the 
commissary software system. 
 

5. Question 4: “Will the vendor have to provide any equipment such as PC’s or printers?” 
Response: Currently, Keefe’s software is internet based and is installed and operated 
on Mesa County computers.  If the awarded offeror had a need to install additional PC’s 
or printers, the cost of the additional PC’s and printers would be the responsibility of the 
offeror. 
 

6. Question 5: “Are MICR checks used?” 
Response: Currently, MICR check are not being used.  Currently, Mesa County issues 
(non-MICR) checks.  Mesa County is interested in other options offerors may have for 
inmate account balances, to include debit card options. 
 

7. Question 6: “If so, is it the vendors responsibility to provide MICR check printer?” 
Response: N/A 
 

8. Question 7: “Who is the phone vendor?” 



   

Response: Securus is the current phone vendor.  Current Securus contract expires 
12/31/16, unless extended. 
 

9. Question 8: “Is there any other vendor that interfaces with the banking or commissary 
system?” 
Response: There is no other vendor that currently interfaces with the existing New 
World JMS banking system.  Currently there is an interface between Keefe and 
Securus.  Currently, Keefe receives information from New World JMS and that 
information is then pushed to Securus. 
 

10. Question 9: “Will Mesa County allow our PC’s and servers to be installed on their 
network?” 
Response: Yes, as long as the system meets our IT security standards. 
 

11. Question 10: “If not is it the vendor’s responsibility to run cabling and install network?” 
Response: If the vendor chooses to install a stand-alone system, the cost would be the 
responsibility of the vendor. 
 

12. Question 11: “Are the inmate POD kiosks on Mesa County’s network or the current 
vendors network?” 
Response: The current vendor has a stand-alone system.  
 

13. Question 12: “Provide more detail around the following requirement (4.6.12.) The 
Contractor must be able to convert existing inmate accounting system history, if 
required by the Owner.” 
Response: Assuming Mesa County elects to move their banking to the awarded 
vendor’s banking software system then the vendor will be responsible to migrate 
(electronically or manually) the account balance/history of the inmates in the facility at 
that time into the vendor’s banking system.  There would not be a requirement or 
expectation to migrate historical account information for inmates not currently in 
custody. 
 

14. Question 13: “Is the commissary onsite?” 
Response: Currently, commissary is delivered to the facility on Thursdays, pre-packed 
and labeled per inmate, then delivered to in the inmate (by staff) on Saturdays. 
 

15. Question 14: “What is the average facility population?” 
Response: Please refer to Section 4.8.3 of the original solicitation.  
 

16. Question 15: “What is the number of indigent inmates?” 
Response: Average number of indigent inmates is 125. 
 

17. Question 16: “Please provide a current commissary menu to include item sizes & 
pricing.” 
Response: The requested information has been attached to this Addendum 1. 
 

18. Question 17: “What is the spending limit?” 
Response: Current commissary spending limit is $100.00.  There is no limit on phone 
time purchases. 
 
 



   

 
19. Question 18: “What was the revenue over the past 12 months? (excluding phone 

sales)?” 
Response: Commissary revenue (gross paid to Commissary vendor), excluding phone 
sales, from March 2015 – March 2016: $272,455.00. 
 

20. Question 19: “Are phone cards/time sold through the commissary - if so please provide 
phone revenue for the past 12 months” 
Response:  Yes.  Currently, Securus phone time is sold through Keefe.  Keefe began 
selling Securus phone time in October of 2015.  Phone time sales October 2015 – 
March 2016: $26,486.00. 
 

21. Question 20: “Are any type of kits provided? If so please provide the contents, cost per 
kit and number of kits sold per year.” 
Response: No kits are currently provided. 
 

22. Question 21: “Is an ecommerce program included in the bid? If so provide 12 month 
ecommerce revenue (if not included in overall revenue figures).” 
Response:  Our current provider does not offer an “ecommerce program” at Mesa 
County.  Mesa County has an interest in inmates’ friends and family being able to add 
money to an inmate’s account online and/or in the ability for friends and family to 
purchase commissary items for an inmate online. 

 
23. Question 24: “What about running the commissary off-site vs. on-site?” 

Response:  Mesa County is open to offeror’s proposals.  Currently, commissary is 
delivered to the jail weekly, no stock is kept on-site. 
 

24. Question 25: “What about additional storage on-site, is there any?” 
Response:  There is the potential for on-site storage, depending on proposal. 
 

25. Question 26: “Who currently is responsible for off-loading the deliveries?” 
Response:  Currently, this is handled by delivery driver then Mesa County staff. 
 

26. Question 27: “Is the current schedule for delivery and distribution open to change?” 
Response:  Yes.  The primary reason commissary is currently delivered on Saturdays 
is because the pod/facility traffic is slower on Saturdays. 
 

27. Question 28: “Pod/section breakdown” 
Response: See below, each pod or subsection currently has 1 kiosk 
 
Pod or Subsection   Maximum Beds 
Cedar 1        29 
Cedar 2        8 
Cedar 3        16 
Spruce        57 (can overflow to 65) 
Oak         80 
Willow 1        32 
Willow 2        16 
Willow 3        40 
Pinyon 1        20 
Pinyon 2        37 (can overflow to 45) 



   

Aspen 1 (female)     20 
Aspen 2 (female)     8 
Aspen 3 (female)     29 
Gym (no current kiosks)   48 (goal of 48 beds) 

 
The original solicitation for the project noted above is amended as noted.  
 

All other conditions of subject remain the same. 
 

Respectfully, 

 
Nicholas C Jones, Buyer 
City of Grand Junction, Colorado   
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